
TownBA of Groveland „ J r. , .
_  4 _ _  Brad Ligols, Chair
Economic Development Walter F Sorenson Jr. Vice-Chair

Planning & Conservation Department Chris Goodwin

Planning Board DJ McNulty
183 M a i n  S t r e e t  Jason Naves, Associate Member

G r o v e l a n d ,  M A  0 1 8 3 4

MEETING NOTICE
(M.G.L Chapter 30A Sections 18-25)

P L A N N I N G  B O A R D  

T U E S D A Y ,  A p r i l  2 3 , 2 0 2 4  

7 : 0 0  P M

T o w n  H a l l  1 8 3  M a i n  S t r e e t  

G r o v e l a n d ,  M A  0 1 8 3 4  

Jdnnie ScfincCfer

AGENDA

n.3

nTl

70 .... .
33»
-a

<20

—3—t f™

oC1

cn

~o
3:

CO

—5
oo«•

m

m
CD VjO

B o a r d / C o m m i t t e e  N a m e ;  

D a t e :

T im e  o f  M e e t i n g :  

L o c a t i o n :

S i g n a t u r e :

Join Zoom Meeting 

M e e t i n g  I D :  9 3 9  9 5 1 7  4 4 1 4  

P a s s c o d e :  9 4 8 6 1 8

For discussion and possible vote:

PUBLIC HEARING
CONTINUED 6-8 ELM PARK -  A  p u b l i c  h e a r i n g  i n  a c c o r d a n c e  w i t h  G e n e r a l  L a w s ,  C h a p t e r  4 0 A ,  a s  

a m e n d e d ,  f o r  t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n  m a d e  b y  R o d  R i v e r a ,  9 7  B e a c h  S t r e e t ,  M a l d e n ,  f o r  t h e  p r e m i s e s  l o c a t e d  a t  6 -  

8  E lm  P a r k  G r o v e l a n d ,  M a p  1 0  L o t  0 1 3 ,  l o c a t e d  i n  t h e  B u s i n e s s  ( B )  Z o n i n g  D i s t r i c t  f o r  a  S p e c i a l  P e r m i t  

f o r  a  P a r k i n g  R e d u c t i o n  i n  a c c o r d a n c e  w i t h  S e c t i o n  5 0 - 9 . 4  a n d  S e c t i o n  5 0 - 1 4 . 6  o f  t h e  G r o v e l a n d  Z o n i n g  

B y l a w  d u e  t o  a n  i n c r e a s e  i n  p a r k i n g  f o r  t h e  o p e r a t i o n  o f  a  r e s t a u r a n t .

6-8 ELM PARK: M in o r  S i t e  P l a n  R e v i e w .

929-931 SALEM STREET: P r o j e c t  u p d a t e .

91 SEVEN STAR ROAD: D i s c u s s i o n  o n  p o s s i b l e  c o m m o n  d r i v e w a y  p r o p o s a l .

833 SALEM STREET: D e c i s i o n  o f  c h a n g e  o f  p l a n s  f r o m  g r a s s  t o  r i p  r a p .

833 SALEM STREET: A c c e p t a n c e  o f  l e t t e r  d e e m i n g  p r o j e c t  c o m p l i a n c e  f o r  C e r t i f i c a t e  o f  O c c u p a n c y .  

MINUTES: A c c e p t a n c e  o f  J a n u a r y  9 , 2 0 2 4 ,  a n d  A p r i l  2 ,  2 0 2 4 ,  m e e t i n g  m i n u t e s .

TOWN PLANNER UPDATE
S t i p e n d s

OTHER ITEMS NOT REASONABLE ANTICIPATED AT TIME OF POSTING

NEXT MEETING: T o  b e  d e t e r m i n e d .

ADJOURNMENT

N O T E  -  N o t i c e s  a n d  a g e n d a s  a r e  t o  b e  p o s t e d  4 8  h o u r s  i n  a d v a n c e  o f  t h e  m e e t i n g  e x c l u d i n g  S a t u r d a y s ,  S u n d a y s ,  a n d  l e g a l  

h o l i d a y s .



































1

Annie Schindler

From: Don Greaney <don@appliedgraphics.com>
Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 10:11 AM
To: Annie Schindler
Cc: Rebecca Oldham
Subject: RE: parking study
Attachments: Parking Excerpt From Elm Square Report.pdf

Good morning, 
Yes please do based on the fact the applicant doesn’t meet the bylaw requirements. Will any new business in the center 
have the required parking? The building where the dinner and plumbing business was with 4 total bedrooms isn’t going 
to be able to meet parking requirements. If and when they try to get business permits. Based on the plan you sent me it 
was spelled out that the building owners aren’t able to give tenants enough parking to open their business. It’s not up to 
the Town to provide the required parking to meet the Town bylaw requirements for property owners. The 16 spaces the 
Town maintains is a plus to all the businesses to give visitors a place to park. If the Town is going to adjust the rules and 
be responsible for businesses parking needs and take on snow removal and repairs. I don’t think the taxpayers should be 
paying for their requirements to meet Town bylaws. The minimum requirements in the bylaws for parking need to be 
followed. Other businesses have been denied for not having the required spaces. We don’t need lawsuits! 
Best, Don  
From: Annie Schindler [mailto:ASchindler@Grovelandma.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 8:45 AM 
To: don@appliedgraphics.com 
Cc: Rebecca Oldham 
Subject: RE: parking study 
 
Morning, 
 
Is this something you would like me to share with the Board in their meeting packet for April 23rd? 
 
Best, 
 
Annie Schindler 
Town Planner & Conservation Agent 
Town of Groveland | 978.556.7214 
 
The Secretary of the Commonwealth's Office has determined that most e-mails to and from municipal offices and officials 
are public records.  Consequently, confidentiality should not be expected. 
 
From: Don Greaney <don@appliedgraphics.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 7:46 AM 
To: Annie Schindler <ASchindler@Grovelandma.com> 
Cc: Rebecca Oldham <ROldham@Grovelandma.com> 
Subject: FW: parking study 
 
Good morning, 
Thank you for sending the parking plan. The number of real spaces the square has to offer looks to be 16 total owned by 
Groveland. 12 in the center and the 4 added on Main Street. Other than the 16 all others listed seem to be a stretch. 
Every business needs to meet the Towns requirement per the Bylaws for onsite parking. It’s obvious that 6-8 Elm Park 
doesn’t have the proper onsite parking for the existing tenants. I hope the Town didn’t spend any money for this plan! 



2

Most of the spaces they reference are beyond the 500’ per the bylaw to count as useable to any downtown business. As 
well as privately owned properties. The only solution to the parking issue for the property owners downtown would be 
to collectively buy a property and build a parking lot to accommodate all that is required to support their buildings to 
have tenants.       
 
Make it a Great Day! 
Regards, Don 
 
 
 

 

Don Greaney 
978-241-5316 
 
Applied Graphics, Inc. 
61 S. Hunt Road 
Amesbury, MA 01913 
 

www.appliedgraphics.com 
Facebook  Twitter   
Google+  LinkedIn 

 
ATTENTION: The information including attachment(s) contained in this email is confidential. Use or distribution of such confidential information is strictly 
prohibited. If this email is not intended for you, please reply to the sender that you have received the message in error, and then delete it. 
 
WARNING: Information Subject to Export Control Laws. This document, or software if applicable, contains information subject to the International Traffic in Arms 
Regulation (ITAR) or the Export Administration Regulation (EAR) of 1979. This information may not be exported, released, or disclosed to foreign persons, whether 
within or outside the United States without first complying with the export license requirements of the ITAR and/or the EAR. Include this notice with any reproduced 
portion of this document. 
 
 
From: Annie Schindler [mailto:ASchindler@Grovelandma.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 7:53 PM 
To: Don Greaney 
Subject: RE: parking study 
 
Hi Don, 
 
Nice to see you as well! Please see attached the information that was in the Boards meeting packet tonight.  
 
Best, 
 
Annie Schindler 
Town Planner & Conservation Agent 
Town of Groveland | 978.556.7214 
 
The Secretary of the Commonwealth's Office has determined that most e-mails to and from municipal offices and officials 
are public records.  Consequently, confidentiality should not be expected. 
 
From: Don Greaney <don@appliedgraphics.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 7:51 PM 
To: Annie Schindler <ASchindler@Grovelandma.com> 
Subject: parking study 
 
Hi Annie, 
It was good to see you tonight. I look forward to seeing the almost 200 parking spaces the Town has to offer 
businesses in the Elm Park.  



3

 
Make it a great day! 
Regards, Don 
   

 

Don Greaney 
978-241-5316 
  
Applied Graphics, Inc. 
61 S. Hunt Road 
Amesbury, MA 01913 
  

ATTENTION: The information including attachment(s) contained in this 
email is confidential. Use or distribution of such confidential information 
is strictly prohibited. If this email is not intended for you, please reply to 
the sender that you have received the message in error, and then delete 
it. 
   
WARNING: Information Subject to Export Control Laws. This 
document, or software if applicable, contains information subject to the 
International Traffic in Arms Regulation (ITAR) or the Export 
Administration Regulation (EAR) of 1979. This information may not be 
exported, released, or disclosed to foreign persons, whether within or 
outside the United States without first complying with the export license 
requirements of the ITAR and/or the EAR. Include this notice with any 
reproduced portion of this document. 

Facebook  Twitter   
Google+  LinkedIn 

 



Town of Groveland 
Economic Development 

Planning & Conservation Department 

Planning Board 
 

  

 

DECISION FOR SPECIAL PERMIT 

FOR A PARKING REDUCTION 

6-8 ELM PARK 

 

PETITIONER: Rod Rivera 

97 Beach Street 
Malden MA 02148 
 

DATE: April 23, 2024 

ADDRESS: 6 – 8 Elm Park 
Groveland, MA 
10-013-0 

HEARING: April 2, 2024, April 23, 2024 

 
YOU ARE HEREBY notified of the Decision of the Board of Appeals on the application made 

by Rod Rivera (the “Applicant”) for property owned by Compass Realty Trust, 6 Forester Street, 

Wakefield MA 01880, located at 6-8 Elm Park, Groveland MA, Assessors Map 10 Lot 013, 

located in the Business (B) Zoning District (the “Property”). 

As set forth in the application filed with the Board and testimony given at the public hearing, the 
Applicant sought a Special Permit pursuant to MGL 40A and the Groveland Zoning Bylaws 
Section 9.4 and 14.6 for a reduction in parking.  

The application was filed on March 7, 2024, and notice of such public hearing was given by 
posting in Town Hall, publication in the Eagle Tribune on Marh 18, 2024 and March 25, 2024, 
and by certified mail return receipt to all parties-in-interest as defined in MGL Chapter 40A 
Section 11. 

The Board, as authorized by the Groveland Zoning Bylaw Section 9.4, heard the application at a 
public hearing on April 2, 2024, April 23, 2024, AND, at the Groveland Town Hall. 

The following members were present at the hearing: Brad Ligols, DJ McNulty, Chris Goodwin, 
and Jason Naves.  

FINDINGS 

The Board also makes the following findings in connection with this Decision, which references 
the criteria that the Board may use to find that the reduction is not inconsistent with public health 
and safety, or that the reduction promotes a public benefit the granting of a Special Permit for a 
parking reduction in the Groveland Zoning Bylaw Section 9.4(A). The cases referenced and 
discussed by the Board were as follows; 

(1) Use of a common parking lot for separate uses having peak demands occurring at 

different times. 



 

6-8 Elm Park 

Decision for Special Permit 

For a Parking Reduction 

Page 2 of 4 

The Board finds that… 

(2) Age or other characteristics of occupants of the facility requiring parking which 

reduces auto usage. 

The Board finds that… 

(3) Peculiarities of the use which will make usual measures of demand invalid. 

The Board finds that… 

(4) Availability of on-street parking or parking at nearby municipally owned facilities.  

The Board finds that… 

The Board also makes the following findings in connection with this Decision, which references 
the criteria for the granting of a Special Permit in the Groveland Zoning Bylaw Section 14.6(A). 

(5) Social, economic, or community needs which are served by the proposal. 

 

The Board finds that …  

 

(6) Traffic flow and safety, including parking and loading. 

 

The Board finds that …  

 

(7) Adequacy of utilities and other public services. 

The Board finds that … 

(8) Neighborhood character and social structures. 

 

The Board finds that … 

  

(9) Impacts on the natural environment. 

 

The Board finds that … 

 

(10) Potential fiscal impact, including impact on Town services, tax base, and 

employment. 

 

The Board finds that … 

 

(11) Consistency with the Town of Groveland Community Development Plan or the 

Town of Groveland Master Plan. 



 

6-8 Elm Park 

Decision for Special Permit 

For a Parking Reduction 

Page 3 of 4 

The Board finds that … 

For the reasons stated above, the Board finds that the application meets the criteria for granting a 
Special Permit.  

CONDITIONS 
1. This Special Permit is non-assignable and becomes void upon the sale of the business.  

2. Any change of use to this Special Permit will require a subsequent hearing prior to any 

changes being allowed to commence and could require a new filing.  

3. The Applicant shall receive any required federal, state, and local permits required to 

operate. 

4. This Special Permit is subject to recall, given written notification to the Applicant and 

discussion at a public meeting, if written complaints are received from abutters. 

5. In accordance with Groveland Zoning Bylaw Section 14.6(E), if the rights authorized to 

the Applicant by said Special Permit are not exercised within three (3) years from the 

date of granting of said Special Permit (filing date with the Town Clerk of the Boards 

decision), then such rights granted shall lapse unless a substantial use thereof has 

commenced, expect for good cause.  

DECISION 

The Board voted to APPROVE/DENY the application for TYPE OF APPLICATION and 
GRANT the Applicant a Special Permit for XXX  at the Property. 

The motion was as follows: 

XXX  made a motion to XXX. XXX seconded the motion. A vote was taken. Voting aye: 

XXX. Motion XXX.  

 YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 

CHAIR (B. LIGOLS)     

VICE CHAIR (W.F. SORENSON JR)     

MEMBER (D. MCNULTY)     

MEMBER (C. GOODWIN)     

MEMBER (vacant)     

ALT. MEMBER (J. NAVES)     

 

This Special Permit does not take effect until it has been recorded in the Southern Essex District 
Registry of Deeds. The Book and Page number must be communicated to the Town Clerk and 
Town Planner for documentation.  



 

6-8 Elm Park 

Decision for Special Permit 

For a Parking Reduction 

Page 4 of 4 

Any appeal of this decision shall be made pursuant to MGL Section 17 of Chapter 40A. 

BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

_____________________________________ 

CHAIR, chair 
 

 

 

 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++ 
Executed as a sealed instrument this ________ day of (date)  _______________  

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
ESSEX, SS        (DATE) ___________ 
The personally appeared the name ______________________________________________ and 
acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be his free act and deed, before me.  
 
__________________________________                                       _______________________ 
Notary Public         My Commission Expires: 
 
 



 

  Page 1 of 4 
 

 
Average Labor Force 
Name of Contractor Non-Manual      Manual Remarks 

   
  ERA Equipment        1+/-        
 
Construction Activities 

TEC conducted a site visit on Friday, April 8, 2024, to observe construction activities along with the progress of the 
proposed concrete vault at 929 Salem Street and to assess the site for compliance with general industry standards. 
 
At the time of visit, pooled water was observed throughout the bottom of the excavation for the proposed concrete vault. 
Sheet piles for slope stabilization were in place surrounding the excavation. Chain-link fencing and jersey barriers were 
observed around openings leading into the open excavation. The bottom concrete slab was observed to be in place, 
with rebar for all proposed vertical walls extending up from the slab. A section of rebar was left unassembled near the 
northeast corner of the vault to allow access to the interior of the vault for future assembly of forms.  
 
The exterior walls were made up of “exterior” vertical bars (#7) were observed being spaced approximately 10” apart, 
“interior” vertical bars (#4) were observed being spaced approximately 12” apart. Horizontally laid bars (#4) were 
observed attached to the interior/exterior vertical bars, spaced approximately 12” apart. The middle wall was comprised 
of two sets of vertical bars (#5) spaced approximately 12” apart. Horizontally laid bars (#5) were observed attached to 
each separate set of vertical bars, spaced approximately 12” apart.  
 
The Contractor stated they intended to finish forming the wall sections and being ready to pour by the middle of next 
week. The Contractor stated they would contact TEC prior to being ready to pour.  
 
Stockpiles of rebar were noted within and around the western and southern edge of the concrete vault excavation area. 
The two proposed tanks to be placed within the vault were observed south of the existing garage. 
 
A sagging erosion control line was observed near the southwest site limit. 
 
See attached photos for additional details.   
 

TEC Field Representatives:  William Burnham, E.I.T. 
    Kasey Provost, P.E. 
 

Project Groveland Self-Storage  

Location 929 Salem Street, Groveland, MA 01834 

Project No. T0845.15 

Client Town of Groveland 

Contractor ERA Equipment  

TEC PM Peter Ellison 

FIELD REPORT 

Date Time In Time Out 

04/12/2024 7:55 AM 8:25 AM 

Day 
S M T W T F S 

       

Temp 
To 0 0 - 32 32 - 50 50 - 75 75 + 

     

Weather: Rain 

Report No. 

1 



   

 

  Page 2 of 4 
 

 

Figure 1 – Overview of the open exaction, previously poured floor, and assembled wall rebar sections for the proposed 
                  concrete vault. Photo taken facing southwest. 

 

Figure 2 – Example measurement of the “exterior” vertical bar (#7) spacing. Photo taken facing south. 



   

 

  Page 3 of 4 
 

 

Figure 3 – Example measurement of the “exterior” horizontal bar (#4) spacing. Photo taken facing south. 

 

Figure 4 – Rebar and other construction material stockpiles located near the open excavation. Photo taken facing southwest. 



   

 

  Page 4 of 4 
 

 

Figure 5 – Sagging silt fence like located near the southwestern site limit. Photo taken facing southwest. 

 

Figure 6 – Stockpiled proposed gas tanks to be placed in vault, south of existing garage. Photo taken facing southeast. 

 





183 Main Street  
Groveland, MA 01834 

(978) 556-7214 

TOWN OF GROVELAND 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

PLANNING & CONSERVATION DEPARTMENT 
 
 

 

TO: Planning Board 

FROM: Annie Schindler, Town Planner & Conservation Agent 

DATE: April 17, 2024 

RE: TEC/Town Planner Perspective on Grass to Rip-Rap Change at 833 Salem 
Street/Groveland Self-Storage 

Below you can see photos that show where rip-rap was installed rather than grass, which was on 
the approved plan.  

I asked TEC if they believed this would impact stormwater calculations for the site and they 
responded that the applicant should provide updated calculations to show that this change 
wouldn’t negatively impact the stormwater of the site. The applicants engineer responded with 
the following… 

“Annie, I was on-site Wednesday of last week for a full inspection of the site conditions 
but also looked at these areas TEC has noted. Although these areas were shown on the 
project plans as grassed or grassed with a retaining wall, it’s my opinion that they still 
meet the intent of the stormwater analysis. In practice, I always model riprap areas 
(slopes, riprap aprons, forebay lining, etc.) as “open space - grass” in HydroCAD. I’ve 
only run into one project where we modeled the riprap area as something other than open 
grass cover and it was a project with tens of thousands of square feet of riprap stabilized 
slopes. I look at this similar to proposing a clean, crushed stone surface that might be 
used on a site and is generally accepted as a porous surface and therefore doesn’t count 
towards impervious cover (also like porous pavement). So, it’s my opinion that this 
construction field change doesn’t change the way in which our stormwater analysis 
models the site.” 



There was additional back and forth and as it did not appear that Jones & Beach (engineer for the 
applicant) and TEC were going to be able to come to a resolution, I am bringing it to the Board. 
TEC provided the following comment that brings into perspective some important considerations 
when making their decision.  

“In general, I think the Town should require them to make some differentiation between 
grass/lawn area and rip-rap stone area.  TEC’s opinion is that the runoff characteristics 
from rip-rap will be different than lawn – we offered the open space <50% cover, poor as 
an option to model this difference.  We believe that rip rap and lawn area are different 
land cover types. 

To take it to an extreme…I don’t think the Town wants to set a precedent of openly 
allowing rip rap and lawn to be interchangeable, without providing any notice to the 
Town staff or Planning Board.  How would the Town feel if 833 Salem Street made the 
change for all grass areas to be rip rap?” 

 



 

 
 

W:\21236 - GROVELAND MA - 833 SALEM STREET - GROVELAND SELF STORAGE\WORD FILES\Site Condition Report #1.docx 

 

April 1, 2024 
 
RE: Site Condition Report #1 
 833 Salem Street, Groveland, MA 
 Tax Map 47, Lot 34 
 JBE Project No. 21236 
 
Mr. Ligols, per your request and in conjunction with the project’s Conditions of Approval, Jones 
& Beach Engineers (JBE) provides this Site Condition Report to document and describe the 
completed portions of the project as of a site walk on March 13, 2024. It is our understanding 
that this report is needed in support of your request to the Town for a Temporary Certificate of 
Occupancy. 
 
Description of current site condition: 
As of the day of the site walk, areas to be paved as part of Phase 1 are stabilized with compacted 
gravel and generally graded in the manor that the fine graded gravel and pavement will be. 
Infiltration Basin #2 was well vegetated last year ahead of winter and it appears that the grass 
made it through the winter with little sign of die-off. Both forebays are constructed and appear to 
be working as designed for the flow that is reaching them. Chamber System #1 was inspected on 
9/20/2023 prior to backfill and the inlet/oulet flared end sections are visible and stabilized, as 
seen in the inspection photos. In several areas there are riprap stabilized surfaces/slopes in place 
of grassed/vegetated surfaces or slopes shown on the approved plans. The riprap was added in 
these areas to reduce maintenance needs, ensure more fortified slopes, and fortify a few areas 
where new, offsite water flow came onto the site. It is our interpretation that these surfaces 
operate similarly to the runoff characteristics of grassed surfaced and are acceptable construction 
changes. All catch basins and drain basins required within the Phase 1 area are installed.  
 
In conclusion, we believe that the site is in a stable condition and built per the approved plans 
except for some reasonable construction field changes noted above. 
 
Very truly yours, 
JONES & BEACH ENGINEERS, INC. 
 
 
 
Ian MacKinnon, P.E. 
Associate | Project Manager 
 
 
 
  



2 

 
 
 

    
 
W:\21236 - GROVELAND MA - 833 SALEM STREET - GROVELAND SELF STORAGE\WORD FILES\Site Condition Report #1.docx  
 
 
                                 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Photo #1: Forebay #2 

Photo #2: Infiltration Basin #2. Good percentage of vegetation growth via seeding last 
summer. 



3 

 
 
 

    
 
W:\21236 - GROVELAND MA - 833 SALEM STREET - GROVELAND SELF STORAGE\WORD FILES\Site Condition Report #1.docx  
 
 
                                 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Photo #3: Inlet/outlet FES to Chamber System #1 (one of two inlet/outlets) 

Photo #4: Forebay #1. Stone in place and showing signs of good operation. 



4 

 
 
 

    
 
W:\21236 - GROVELAND MA - 833 SALEM STREET - GROVELAND SELF STORAGE\WORD FILES\Site Condition Report #1.docx  
 
 
                                 

 
 
 
 
  

Photo #5: Looking along north side of Building #2. Stabilized, compacted gravel in 
place. 

Photo #6: Looking at area between existing storage facility and tie-in points. Grassed 
medians on east side of Buildings 2, 3 & 4 have been replaced with large diameter rip 
rap to cut down on maintenance and stabilization/slope concerns. 



5 

 
 
 

    
 
W:\21236 - GROVELAND MA - 833 SALEM STREET - GROVELAND SELF STORAGE\WORD FILES\Site Condition Report #1.docx  
 
 
                                 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Photo #7: Looking between Buildings #2 & #3. Stabilized, compacted gravel in place. 

Photo #8: Looking between Buildings #3 & #4. Stabilized, compacted gravel in place. 



6 

 
 
 

    
 
W:\21236 - GROVELAND MA - 833 SALEM STREET - GROVELAND SELF STORAGE\WORD FILES\Site Condition Report #1.docx  
 
 
                                 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Photo #9: Large diameter riprap slope off southwest corner/side of Building #4. This 
area previously shown as grass slopes. During construction, uphill property currently 
under development by the abutter discharged large volumes of water towards the 
project site. This volume of water is not naturally occurring and resulted in washout of 
some vegetated slopes that had been established. This, combined with the developer’s 
desire to ease slope maintenance, large diameter riprap stone was placed and we find 
this comparable to a vegetated surface. 



7 

 
 
 

    
 
W:\21236 - GROVELAND MA - 833 SALEM STREET - GROVELAND SELF STORAGE\WORD FILES\Site Condition Report #1.docx  
 
 
                                 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Photo #10: Looking behind Building #4. Stone stabilized slope in combination with 
upper grassed slope. 

Photo #11: Looking towards Salem Street from southwest corner of Building #3. 
Stabilized, compacted gravel surface in place in areas under Phase 1. 



8 

 
 
 

    
 
W:\21236 - GROVELAND MA - 833 SALEM STREET - GROVELAND SELF STORAGE\WORD FILES\Site Condition Report #1.docx  
 
 
                                 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Photo #12: Looking towards west end of Buildings #3 & #4. Stabilized, compacted 
gravel surface in place in areas under Phase 1. 

Photo #13: Photo taken on 9/20/2023 prior to backfill of Chamber System #1.  



Brad Ligols, Chair 

Walter Sorenson, Vice-Chair 

John Stokes III 
Chris Goodwin 

DJ McNulty 

Jason Naves, Associate 

Town of Groveland 
Economic Development 

Planning & Conservation Department 

Planning Board 

183 Main Street 
 Groveland, MA 01834  
 

 

Page 1 of 5 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

January 9, 2024 

 
BOARD: Planning Board 
MEETING DATE: January 9, 2024 
MEETING PLACE: Town Hall and Zoom 
TIME: 7:00 PM 
MEMBERS PRESENT: B. Ligols, C. Goodwin, J. Naves, D. McNulty, W.F. Sorenson Jr., 

J. Stokes III 
MEMBERS ABSENT: None. 
GUESTS: Steve Glowacki (912 Salem Street representative), William Bryan 

III (912 Salem Street owner), Craig & Kathy Weaver (25 Cannon 
Hill Ave), Bill Burnham (TEC) 

 

Note: Minutes are not a transcript; see the recorded meeting for verbatim information.  
 

Pursuant to Chapter 20 of the Acts of 2021, “An Act Relative to Extending Certain COVID-19 Measures 
Adopted During the State of Emergency”, extended by the Governor on March 30, 2023, which extended 
permission for boards and commissions to conduct remote meetings, the Planning Board conducted this 
meeting in a hybrid format.  
 
MOTION: Goodwin motions to open the Planning Board meeting of January 9. Stokes III seconds the 
motion. Voting aye; McNulty, Goodwin, Ligols, Stokes III, Naves. Voted unanimously in favor, the 
motion passes.  

MINUTES: Approval of September 5, 2023, October 16, 2023, and December 19, 2023, meeting 
minutes. 
MOTION: Goodwin motions to accept the September 5, 2023, October 16, 2023, and December 19, 
2023, meeting minutes. Naves seconds the motion. Voting aye; McNulty, Goodwin, Ligols, Stokes III, 
Naves. Voted unanimously in favor, the motion passes. 
 

TOWN PLANNER UPDATE 

Planner: The owner of 1 Elm Park will probably be applying for a Site Plan Review and parking reduction 
Special Permit in the near future, we should solidify a meeting schedule for the next couple of months. 
106 King St/Katie Lane is going well, the first home received their Occupancy Permit. 833 Salem Street 
is going well, at least two buildings are up. 
 

929-931 SALEM STREET: Review of vault storage plans.  
Planner: The applicants engineer has provided a response and TEC is taking a look and evaluating the 
comments.  
 

ZONING BYLAW CHANGES: Schedule for hearings.  
Planner: The Building Commissioner and I touch base every year on different zoning changes we are 
looking to make. One that we’ve been seeing is that Battery Energy Storage Systems (BESS), large scale 

APPROVED X-X-2024 



 

Page 2 of 5 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

January 9, 2024 

 

battery storage, seems to be heading in the direction of solar panels, meaning that they cannot be 
prohibited. We are working to put a bylaw together to zone for these systems to get ahead of this. 
Board: General discussion on BESS and the implications of having a bylaw in place versus not.  
Board: We are available February 6th, February 20th, and March 19th.  
 

833 SALEM STREET/15 NELSON STREET 

Ligols recuses himself. 
MOTION: McNulty motions to have Chris as a temporary chair. Naves seconds the motion. Voting aye; 
McNulty, Goodwin, Stokes III, Naves. The motion passes. 
Goodwin: Last time we just wanted the foundations in, correct? 

Planner: Correct.  
Ligols: There are now two buildings complete. Electrical is going in at the end of the week. We’re looking 
for a temporary CO by February 13th. We’ll be missing paving and fencing. For Nelson Street we were 
going to put an overlay down on Nelson Street, but we don’t have to disturb Nelson Street anymore 
because we brought the water in from another direction. The development on Sewell St is going to use it 
for access. Looking for a $25,000 reduction on Salem Street and the full amount on Nelson Street. 
MOTION: Sorenson motions to reduce the 833 Salem Street bond to$25,000 and the full amount on the 
Nelson Street bond. Naves seconded the motion. Voting aye; McNulty, Goodwin, Stokes III, Naves, 
Sorenson. The motion passes. 
Ligols returns to the Board.  
 

Continued 912 SALEM STREET: In accordance with General Laws, Chapter 40A, as amended, 
Groveland Zoning Bylaw Section 13, and Groveland Stormwater Bylaw and Regulations, the Board will 
hear the application made by Mark A Abare, for the premises located at 912 Salem St Map 41 Lot 095, in 
the Industrial (I), Residential 1 (R1), and Residential 2 (R2) Zoning Districts, and owned by William T 
Bryan III, for a Site Plan Approval and Stormwater Management and Land Disturbance Permit. The 
application is for the construction of a contractor’s yard and associated site work for the project.  
MOTION: Sorenson motions to opening the hearing for 912 Salem Street. McNulty seconds the motion. 
Voting aye; McNulty, Goodwin, Naves, Ligols, Sorenson. Stokes III abstains. The motion passes. 
Glowacki: When I was last here, we had some discussions regarding truck turning and the outstanding 
peer review comments. Since then, we’ve submitted additional items. We tweaked the wall away from the 
septic system, and we’ll be providing a final stamped plan. The other was that some of the proposed trees 
were too close to stormwater lines. We’ll ensure that is addressed in the final plans. The last item at the 
meeting was the location of the sign, it has been placed on the plan. It is a location place holder; the actual 
design will adhere to the bylaw.  
McNulty: Should note where the sign is near the Groveland Gas sign, so that you don’t block their sign 
and they don’t block yours.  
Sorenson: Have you done a traffic study with the new lights? 

Glowacki: Our engineer did a study on sight line. We also looked at traffic volumes. Annie provided us 
with a draft for potential conditions and one is that after 75% occupancy of the units to have a traffic 
engineer to do a field evaluation to ensure the intersection isn’t being impeded. The peaks are rather 
minimal. We haven’t seen the traffic study for the light, but usually there is a growth factor worked into 
that calculation.  
Ligols: What happens at 75% there is a heavy use and there’s a turnover and it becomes minimal?  
McNulty: You would just need to adjust the timing of the light.  
Glowacki: Yes, it would just be to tweak the traffic light. It should be a minor fix.  



 

Page 3 of 5 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

January 9, 2024 

 

Sorenson: Was a traffic study done on the intersection? What was the traffic count? 

Glowacki: It was anticipated for an average weekday 216 trips per day.  
Burnham: Regarding the traffic count; yes, TEC did do the light/intersection plans and we do have the 
number on it. I can get you those numbers. 
Sorenson: There are times when traffic gets backed up there now. I get that 200 cars a day won’t make a 
difference. There are times when it gets backed up. 
McNulty: It is in the report from Vanesse, it says it’s 15,000 vehicles per day.  
Sorenson: But what about an hour-by-hour breakdown? 

Glowacki: Vanesse did evaluate that, including the proposed new light, and they anticipate no issue. The 
nature of the proposed condition would address exactly that. 
Ligols: I think they’ve satisfied this requirement. 
Glowacki: Last time we also discussed circulation around the building. Since then, we have moved the 
building and made it smaller, which will allow for total circulation around the building. We also modeled 
that all fire trucks will be able to get around the site.  
Ligols: If this building was very successful, would you try to put in another one on the rest of the site? 

Glowacki: We would have to do a wetland crossing and make a good argument for it. There are other 
factors at play, such as utilities, turtle habitat, I’m not saying it is impossible, but I don’t see it happening 
anytime soon. Relative to Town approvals, we’ve received our Order of Condition with the Conservation 
Commission and our Special Permit with the Zoning Board. We also have responded to TECs final 
comments.  
Planner: There is a draft permit in your meeting packet.  
Board: Board goes through findings in the draft permit, attached to these minutes. 
Ligols: Is the project serving the social, economic, or community needs? 

Board: Yes.  
Ligols: Traffic flow and safety? 

Board: Yes, this has been adequately met. 
Ligols: Adequacy of utilities and other public services? 

Board: Agreed. 
Sorenson: As long as they are all underground. Is this in compliance with Dark Sky? 

Glowacki: It has been designed to be Dark Sky compliant with hoods and shields.  
Ligols: Neighborhood characteristics and social structure? 

Board: Agreed.  
Ligols: Impacts on the natural environment? 

Board: This has been addressed. 
Ligols: Potential fiscal impact, including impact on Town services, tax base, and employment? 

Sorenson: That is for the Town Administrators input, did we get anything? 

Goodwin: I think it would be minimal on the services.  
Sorenson: Can we get something from town management outlining the impact of running a cruiser here or 
a firetruck? 

Goodwin: I think there will be a positive in the collection of the taxes that would offset any services.  
Planner: I received no comment on these matters when I sent out this application for review to the 
different department.  
Ligols: If you wanted that it should have been done earlier. We’ll vote on this tonight. 
Ligols: Consistency with the Master Plan? 

Board: We are good with this as well. 



 

Page 4 of 5 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

January 9, 2024 

 

Planner: Outlines the special conditions in the draft. Generally, for site plan reviews the Board requires a 
bond of $50,000. 
Ligols: Would that be enough if they were to have issues with the wetlands? 

Planner: The bond wouldn’t cover that. If they were to have an issue with the wetlands, the Conservation 
Commission would issue an Enforcement Order and the violator would be mandated to fix the issue, 
regardless of cost. The Commission uses a different mechanism.  
Ligols: What are you going to use for erosion controls? 

Planner: It was conditioned in the Order of Conditions with the Conservation Commission.  
Glowacki: We know these controls are very important.  
McNulty: One of the draft conditions notes that there shall be no vehicle storage, should we elaborate? 

Naves: The meaning of it was to ensure that it didn’t turn into a junkyard.  
Board: Discussion on how to work this condition. 
Sorenson: Can you please add language about compliance with Dark Sky? And the language of the Town 
Planner enforcing the permit. Also, it notes a Planning Department, but change that to Planning Board. 
Planner: Yes. 
Board: For the $50,000 bond it can be cash, letter of credit, or insurance. 
MOTION: Sorenson motions to close the public hearing. Goodwin seconds the motion. Voting aye; 
McNulty, Goodwin, Ligols, Naves, Sorenson. Voted unanimously in favor, the motion passes.  
MOTION: Sorenson motions to approve the special permit as discussed with the conditions and 
restrictions discussed this evening along with the final engineering report and necessary corrections. 
Goodwin seconds the motion. Voting aye; McNulty, Goodwin, Ligols, Naves, Sorenson. Voted 
unanimously in favor, the motion passes. 
MOTION: Sorenson motions to issue the decision with the corrections, modifications listed by TEC and 
the final engineering report. McNulty seconds the motion. Voting aye; McNulty, Goodwin, Ligols, Naves, 
Sorenson. Voted unanimously in favor, the motion passes. 
 

HOMESTEAD LANE: 30-foot no cut zone issue along Cannon Hill Ave. 
Sorenson: I met with the residents and surveyed it.  
K Weaver: The cutting wasn’t dead trees. They want it to be clear. 
Sorenson: This would be the second enforcement action by the Planning Board. What was obvious to me 
was that there was cutting in there without Planning Board approval, there are some dead trees out there. 
The Homestead Ln residents did have an arborist go out there. They are going to try to find some type of 
species to plant there. There is no doubt that the buffer zone has been violated, not by the same owner. 
The problem is that with the trees in this area it deletes the purpose of this buffer area. This was a 
protected space from the beginning. The trees must go back in there, the current owner wasn’t objecting 
to that, just need to figure out the correct trees to plant so that they don’t die.  
Ligols: I think this is more of a civil matter.  
McNulty: I disagree since we have a letter in front of us requesting to remove 12 trees. They now are 
requesting to cut more down after an arborist went out there.  
C Weaver: The owners of Homestead are very aware that there was a no cut zone. I told them that and 
they kept going. We’ve called the police.  
Sorenson: One of the things that I want to put in the subdivision control bylaw are that stone bound needs 
to be put in stating that you can’t cut past this point. In the mortgage closing paperwork you receive your 
Planning Board decision. I’m going to meet back out there with the arborist. There is an erosion problem. 
McNulty: What authority do we have to enforce what needs to be done? 



 

Page 5 of 5 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

January 9, 2024 

 

Sorenson: We have a lot of authority because we put the buffer zone in effect. That’s why it is a 
requirement now for every mortgage closing that you get a copy of the decision. We monitor it and we are 
in charge of it. The dead stuff has to go, the question is just where the new stuff will go. I don’t think we 
should make a decision tonight. I’ll schedule with the arborist and figure out what will be done.  
Ligols: I think this is a slippery slope and the Board should be careful. You can look at it both ways, it’s 
partially a civil matter. 
Naves: A lot of these trees are ash trees, and they have a huge issue with the beetles.  
C Weaver: There was also a very large stand of pine trees.  
Ligols: It may implement taking more trees.  
Sorenson: There’s plenty of area for them to plant more trees.  
Ligols: If they want to voluntarily put these in place, but I just worry about taking a civil stance.  
Sorenson: We aren’t taking a civil stance we’re taking an enforcement stance. We can take it right back to 
the developer and pull an 81W and force the developer back in there. But we don’t need to go there. We 
have consensus on both sides to do something and see what that is. The dead trees do have to come out of 
there, some of the ones that were tagged I had questions on, but my suggestion is that I meet with the 
arborist, have them fine tune it, submit it to the Board and the Board votes on it. For future subdivisions 
we have, we need to take a look at the menu because we have full authority to put in a buffer zone and 
enforce them. However, this one was prior to us putting all the plaques up so people don’t forget.  
McNulty: Can you remind me what your goal was with this? 

C. Weaver: We want the trees restored and the erosion prevented. The erosion undermines my home and 
the trees in my yard. My concern is the retaining wall and any issues with that. 
Sorenson: That is out of the Boards hands. 
Planner: Someone did a large records request on this subdivision, and I saw that there was 
correspondence from Conservation allowing it to go through, but I would have to look into it more.  
Ligols: I just don’t think it should be called an enforcement since they are willing to work with the Board 
and the abutters. It should be the Boards decision to advise. 
McNulty: Right now, we’re just making sure that they are doing their due diligence prior to removing any 
trees.  
Goodwin: So, we will wait to hear from the arborist and the planting plan.  
C. Weaver: I just don’t want my property destroyed.  
 

NEXT MEETINGS: February 6, 2024, February 20, 2024, March 19, 2024 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

MOTION: McNulty motions to adjourn at 8:51 PM. Goodwin seconds the motion. Voting aye; all in 
favor. Voting aye; McNulty, Goodwin, Stokes III, Ligols, Sorenson. The motion passes unanimously in 
favor. 



Brad Ligols, Chair 

Walter Sorenson, Vice-Chair 

Chris Goodwin 

DJ McNulty 

Jason Naves, Associate 

Town of Groveland 
Economic Development 

Planning & Conservation Department 

Planning Board 

183 Main Street 
 Groveland, MA 01834  
 

 

Page 1 of 7 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

April 2, 2024 

 

BOARD: Planning Board 
MEETING DATE: April 2, 2024 
MEETING PLACE: Town Hall and Zoom 
TIME: 7:00 PM 
MEMBERS PRESENT: B. Ligols, C. Goodwin, D. McNulty, J. Naves 
MEMBERS ABSENT: W.F. Sorenson Jr. 
GUESTS: Stephen David (rep for 929-931 Salem St), Meredith Buckley 

(929-931 Salem St), Angelo (contractor for 929-931 Salem St), 
Chris Kirby (Engineer for 929-931 Salem St), Kevin Lopez (6-8 
Elm Park), Rod Rivera (rep 6-8 Elm Park), Alice Twombly (91 
Seven Star Rd), Dan Judson (881 Salem St) 

 

Note: Minutes are not a transcript; see the recorded meeting for verbatim information.  
 

Pursuant to Chapter 20 of the Acts of 2021, “An Act Relative to Extending Certain COVID-19 Measures 
Adopted During the State of Emergency”, extended by the Governor on March 30, 2023, which extended 
permission for boards and commissions to conduct remote meetings, the Planning Board conducted this 
meeting in a hybrid format.  
 

CALL TO ORDER  

MOTION: Goodwin motions to open the April 2, 2024, Planning Board Meeting. McNulty seconds the 
motion. Voted all in favor, the motion passes unanimously in favor.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
NEW 6-8 ELM PARK – A public hearing in accordance with General Laws, Chapter 40A, as amended, 
for the application made by Rod Rivera, 97 Beach Street, Malden, for the premises located at 6-8 Elm 
Park Groveland, Map 10 Lot 013, located in the Business (B) Zoning District for a Special Permit for a 
Parking Reduction in accordance with Section 50-9.4 and Section 50-14.6 of the Groveland Zoning 
Bylaw due to an increase in parking for the operation of a restaurant.  
Ligols: Reads the above notice. 
Rivera: I’m here as the applicant. Want to turn the old pizza place into a restaurant/sports bar. We are 
looking for a reduction in parking since the area is already congested with other tenants, but I think the 
time frame we are proposing for our hours it will work out well. We are proposing Sunday to Thursday 
11 am to 10 pm. On Friday and Saturday until 12 am. For parking requirements, it is 1 spot per 4 seats 
within the restaurant. We have 42 seats, which would require 16 parking spaces. We are asking for 6 
parking spaces reduced. For employees we are going to have two employees in the kitchen and two 
servers, they are all family so will only use one car. Potentially three serves total.  
Ligols: So up to five employees. Where would they all park if they don’t come together? 
Rivera: In the other places they have employees get dropped off and picked up.  
McNulty: Any managers? 

APPROVED X-X-2024 



Page 2 of 7 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

April 2, 2024 

Rivera: I would be the manager. I would come in and check up on the place and then I would leave. I 
would only be there for two or three hours at a time.  
Don Greeney: Don Greeney, the company I work for abuts this property in the Square. When we came 
before the Board for our tenants, they had to have in their lease the number of spaces that they have on the 
property for parking. I didn’t hear any of that for what they are presenting. That property has a 
hairdresser, a laundromat, and Healthy Glow. There are probably 10 employees total in that building 
already. There are ten parking spaces total for that building. I don’t know what spaces they’re getting in 
their lease. We can also use the spaces in the square that anyone can use. There is no on-street parking, no 
parking across the street where the post office is. I don’t want to see people come in and spend a lot of 
money and then have to go out of business because no one can park. The other restaurant there would try 
to use our parking spaces.  
Ligols: Is the parking study in the meeting packet? 
Planner: Yes.  
Ligols: Did they give you a specific amount of space in your lease? 
Rivera: Yes, I believe 6. 
Greeney: The spaces out front are public parking spaces. The parking for this building is in front of 
Family Affair.  
Goodwin: In the parking study it notes there are 192 parking spaces available.  
Greeney: The shared parking spaces need to be 500 feet from the premises according to the bylaw. 
Ligols: We do have dialog from the Police Chief, no parking on 113 or 97.  
Greaney: They didn’t line any spots on the back of Elm Park so you can’t just guess the amount of spots 
there.  
Goodwin: I think you need to give residents the benefit of the doubt that they aren’t going to park 
illegally.  
Michael Anderson: I own the property at 282 Main St, adjacent to the bank. Groveland has always had a 
parking problem. I came to the meeting to hear what the hours were going to be. I just found out that they 
are entertaining a sports bar, and we’re hearing there’s no on street parking on Route 97 or Route 113. My 
concern is I don’t want to end up with spill-over with people who want to park, and they end up trying to 
park in my area. I don’t want to be responsible to come up with signage telling people not to park there. I 
don’t want to tow cars. I grew up in this town, I don’t want to have people I know cars towed off my lot.  
Goodwin: Was that a problem with the previous applicant? 
Anderson: No, but that was takeout, so people were in and out. A sports bar you hang out and watch a 
game. We don’t need people being drunk and hanging out in parking lots. 
Goodwin: I think we should give Groveland residents the benefit of the doubt that they won’t get drunk 
and hangout in parking lots.  
Anderson: I’m not going to accept people parking in my parking lot.  
McNulty: The site itself has 9 parking spots, and the ones out front are public? 
Board: Yes. 
Greaney: But they have three other tenants in the building. He thought he was getting 6 spaces but with 
the other tenants I don’t see how that is possible.  
Ligols: We will close the public comment for now. We should know from the building owner how many 
spots they are getting, which tenants have which spots. Because right now it’s not adding up. 
Goodwin: That expectation was still there for the last restaurant that they would have people sitting there 
as well. 
Planner: The increase in spots between the two restaurants is 4.5 parking spots.  
Goodwin: I think for a matter of 4 spaces and there are other public parking spaces in Elm Square I don’t 
see the debate as far as I’m concerned.  
Ligols: I see what you’re saying, I just want to see what the lease says. And take a look at what’s within 
500 feet for parking.  
Planner: The municipal lot is over 1,000 feet away.  
Goodwin: In most communities you aren’t parking within 500 feet from the restaurant. 



Page 3 of 7 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

April 2, 2024 

Naves: Anyone know what the hours of the salon? The peak times could be off. 
Greeney: Tuesday they are closed, Monday 9-3, Wednesday 9-3, Thursday 12:30-7:30, Friday 9-4, 
Saturday 8-4. The laundromat 5:30am-12:30am. Healthy Glow is open Monday-Thursday 9-8, Friday 9-
6, Saturday 8:30-4, Sunday 10-4. The study must be counting the driveways if the study thinks there are 
192 spaces. They’re going to have to add a dumpster for this.  
Goodwin: I assume the prior tenant had a dumpster.  
Greaney: It was behind the laundromat.   
Ligols: Rivera can you please mark where the dumpster locations are going to be on the site plan for the 
next meeting? 
Rivera: Yes.  
Ligols: We need some more information and to go back and look at the bylaw and the parking plan.  
Board: Discussion on the staggered times of different businesses in the Square.  
Ligols: If you want to bring in the owner and ask him to tell us where the parking for the other businesses 
are.  
MOTION: Ligols motions to continue the hearing until the April 23rd meeting. McNulty seconds. Voted 
all in favor, the motion passes. 
 
929-931 SALEM STREET: Project update.  
David: I represent the owner, the contractor is here, our structural engineer is also here. Last week TEC 
issued additional comments and our engineer has also responded. Regarding permits, the application for 
the State Fire Marshal has been filed and our tank installer expects a decision from them at the latest at 
the beginning of next week. We are going to before the BoS to be able to use the tanks and the hearing 
will be on April 8th. This will allow us to move forward and install the tank. Remaining items are to pour 
the walls for the vault and then install the tanks and pour a cap for the vault. There is presently a stop 
work order, we had complied with everything he wanted except for the confirmation from TEC. If that 
were to happen the expectation the tanks would be installed within 7-10 days.  
Ligols: How did we get to this point? We issued a decision about having our engineer on site. Why did 
you start the project without a permit? Proceed without a permit? Why did everyone avoid our decision? 
David: I did file a building permit with Mr. Joslin before our work began. I think what you are referring to 
is starting without TEC sign off. An underground vault is very unusual for storing vaults. I’ll take 
responsibility for that permit not being pulled. As far as what went on, prior to the pouring of the slab, we 
had a permit pending when the hole was excavated. Mr. Joslin inspected the hole as you have to before a 
foundation goes in, so that was followed. Prior to the pour the engineer came out to the site to inspect the 
rebar and the hole. The next day after the slab was poured Mr. Joslin received a stamped plan and a 
narrative indicating that all the work done was compliant with the plan and the structural integrity was 
okay. In the permit you’re right that there is a clause that the peer review would be there to observe the 
pour.  
Ligols: So, what do we do to rectify that? 
David: We have provided TEC the information relative to the pour, Angelo got information from the 
concrete company and Mr. Kirby sent them over a narrative or plan relative to the integrity of the slab. I 
haven’t seen anything from TEC to challenge that at all.  
Goodwin: Just so we’re clear, the slab was poured, and you did not have approval to do so? 
David: I would say that TEC did not finish their comments.  
Ligols: And they still haven’t finished their comments.  
David: Their comments aren’t about the slab, it’s about the pouring of the top of the vault which hasn’t 
occurred yet.  
Ligols: Was it done the way it was supposed to be done? And how do we know that? If we don’t have 
TEC witnessing the pour, and this is a Zone II Aquifer so it shouldn’t be taken lightly this is our drinking 
water, so I want to make sure it is done right, we don’t want a problem. 



Page 4 of 7 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

April 2, 2024 

David: I don’t see a problem. The structural engineer who designed the vault came out prior to the pour 
and checked not only the ground but the rebar and everything that was done by the contractor. Mr. Joslin 
had inspected the hole. He was there on the day of the pour.  
Goodwin: He was there because he was called because you were in violation of the cease-and-desist 
order. There was a cease and desist that was disregarded and a second one issued. The problem isn’t with 
your structural engineers finding, the problem is with the process of the approval not being followed by 
the crew doing the work.  
David: I think I’ve already addressed that.  
Ligols: Mr. Joslin is not an engineer, he is a building inspector.  
David: But he had an obligation to inspect a hole for a foundation to make sure it is suitable. I understand 
he has a limited function, but he was there.  
Ligols: Because of the phone calls he was getting about you violating a cease and desist.  
David: You began attacking the integrity of the work that was done.  
Ligols: I’m not attacking the integrity of the work, but how do we know that the integrity of the work is 
done the way it was supposed to be done per our peer reviewer.  
David: You know that because our structural engineer provided a narrative and stamped plan the next day 
and it was sent to TEC, and they haven’t indicated any issues.  
Ligols: We still don’t know if they’re going to sign off on something they didn’t see.  
Goodwin: That is the Boards issue. We stipulated as part of our decision that our peer reviewer witnesses 
the pour so that we can be certain about how it was done, and that was flagrantly disregarded.  
Angelo: At the time the work was done we had no idea that TEC was supposed to overlook this job. 
When we went ahead with plans from the structural engineer, all the rebar was put in and Chris Kirby 
took pictures of all the rebar and we gave TEC the submittals for the concrete we used which as on the 
plan, and that was the only part of the job that has pictures of every rebar in the concrete and the 
thickness.  
Ligols: Did you have a third party check out the rebar? Was there poly underneath for the pour like we 
put in the design? Was there concrete testing? 
Angelo: The concrete testing wasn’t done. But we gave them the submittals, so they know what type of 
concrete that was put in. 
Ligols: I’m a developer who happens to be pretty well versed in fuel and when you do concrete work, we 
have a third part come in and do a rebar inspection to make sure everything is correct. 
McNulty: Was that part of the decision for those things to be done? Or is that something people do on 
their own? 
Ligols: It is best practice. 
McNulty: So, when you went to excavate you only had a pending permit? 
David: We had a special permit. 
Ligols: That’s not a building permit.  
David: We had applied for a building permit. We did not have a permit in hand. 
McNulty: I just want to have a timeline. There was a pending building permit, it was submitted but not 
complete, then the excavation happened prior to it being a signed permit.  
David: I believe Mr. Joslin said it was okay to dig the hole. 
Ligols: What I understand is the hole was dug, he gave them permission to sink the metal sheeting to 
finish that and that was it. 
McNulty: Was TEC supposed to be there for the excavation. I think I remember hearing that comment 
because of the aquifer.  
Ligols: Was the hole pinned?  
Angelo: Yes 
McNulty: Was TEC supposed to be there for that? 
Ligols: No TEC was just supposed to be there for the pour.  
McNulty: The issues were the sheeting and the pour of the slab? 
Ligols: Yes. 



Page 5 of 7 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

April 2, 2024 

Goodwin: They put in the sheeting and then issued a stop work order, which they violated when they 
poured the slab and another cease and desist was issued. The pour was supposed to be witnessed by TEC.  
McNulty: It’s irritating that it was done incorrectly twice, I just want to make sure that the work was all 
done correctly.  
David: The engineer would not have stamped and written a narrative if he wasn’t comfortable with the 
work.  
Goodwin: We aren’t questioning the engineer’s competency. Our issue comes from adherence to the 
process more than anything else.  
David: I expect that as soon as we hear back from TEC, we’re hoping everything is resolved and Mr. 
Joslin will sign off on the permit.  
McNulty: Are we up to date with TEC from the 28th with things that are partially addressed. Have these 
been addressed? 
David: There was a response dated today. There are just two more comments that Mr. Kirby addressed.  
Planner: I sent that response to TEC this afternoon.  
Ligols: Explains the original permitting history. I’d like to hear from Mr. Kirby on this.  
McNulty: We owe it to the residents to make sure it was done correctly.  
Chris Kirby: The vault was designed for all the appropriate loadings, and I came out and inspected the 
slab and it was done exactly to plan, and I provided a field report and an affidavit for that. The slab is on 
ledge, I am 10% confident that the work is to plan and design. It was a pour over hard ledge.  
Ligols: How do you provide concrete testing? 
Kirby: I recommend taking some cylinders for the wall pours. 
Ligols: What about the floor? 
Angelo: We didn’t take any test cylinders on that. But the concrete company had information and gave us 
the submittals.  
Ligols: That’s up to the building inspector rather than us.  
Naves: When I read some of TECs comments I do have concerns. I understand things have been 
resubmitted, but it doesn’t work well when they’re submitted the day of the meeting.  
David: The slab that was poured is 18 inches. TEC has all of this. They haven’t raised any issues with it. 
They weren’t hired to design the vault, just review it. 
Goodwin: I would ask that before Sam issues the okay before he issues the permit to have TEC in there.  
Ligols: That would be on the Building Inspector. 
Goodwin: Understood, it is just a request.  
Dan Judson, 881 Salem Street: I’m concerned about the pictures. I’m also a contractor, and I don’t feel 
comfortable with the fuel leaking through the concrete. If you’re going to pass this with pictures. What 
happens if there is damage. I’m not worried about the tanks; I’m worried about the fuel leaking and 
getting in our water system. Pictures don’t cut it for me. 
David: Normally tanks are just installed in sand, this is unusual because of the aquifer. 
Judson: You started before permits, nothing got inspected, how do we know what’s in that concrete. I 
don’t take this lightly, it’s our drinking water. I think it should be started over.  
Kirby: The pictures were taken as verification of a physical inspection in the field. I went out into the 
hole, measured all the rebar, made sure it was all correct, and provided an affidavit. TEC commented that 
there should be a water stop in the concrete and the tank should be tested watertight. We put a lot of effort 
into designing this tank.  
Goodwin: I think that’s our problem, the people that we wanted onsite to do the inspection weren’t there 
as they were required to be. 
Judson: I don’t know if I want to take Chris Kirby’s word on this.  
Goodwin: I don’t think anyone is questioning his competence. 
Judson: The right people haven’t been involved. I don’t see this going in the right direction. Who would 
be held accountable for it if something goes wrong? 
Ligols: The structural engineer who designs it. I’m also annoyed by what has taken place. We thought it 
was going to be done correctly.  



Page 6 of 7 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

April 2, 2024 

David: I can assure the Board that this vault is costing over $100,000 to install, we aren’t going to spend 
that type of money and not make sure it’s done correctly. Mr. Kirby’s reputation is impeccable. We can 
probably get a coring from somewhere, but again, the issue hasn’t been raised. I believe that it hasn’t been 
raised because the affidavit has satisfied that the slab was poured correctly.  
Ligols: When they pour the walls on top of the floor, are you an environmental engineer or structural 
engineer? How do you seal the walls to the floor to ensure that if there is a release it’s contained? 
Kirby: I’m a structural engineer. There’s a water stop. The wall is structural but there is a water stop that 
seals the joint between the wall and the floor. That’s how you create a watertight tank.    
Ligols: How long does a water stop last? 
Kirby: Probably longer than the concrete. We use the same water stop to create watertight tanks for 
drinking water. It is an industry standard product to create a watertight tank in concrete. 
Ligols: We’ll have to wait to see what TEC has to say. 
McNulty: The resident had a good point. Who is on the hook if something goes wrong? It would be on us 
if something went wrong because we approved it. 
Planner: If there were a spill on this site it would be the responsibility of the owner of the land, like any 
Superfund site if there is a spill.  
David: My expectation, with their limited commentary on their last review, it should be completed soon.  
Judson: Is he going to have an insurance bond that covers leakage if something happens? 
Planner: It wouldn’t be with the Planning Board; we aren’t the authority who would hold that. The 
Planning Board holds bonds, for example, if a subdivision was built and the developer walks away before 
the road is built, we would hold the bond on things like that.  
Judson: Would their insurance cover that? 
David: You can buy insurance for that.  
Judson: I’m just concerned, it’s in a bad stop on a hill above our water.  
David: That’s exactly why the Town insisted on a vault for this.  
Ligols: That’s on the applicant. 
Judson: Operating a gas station and cleaning up a spill are two different things.  
Planner: The state or federal government would be the entity to handle something like that, not the local 
government.  
David: The fact that these tanks are going to be in a concrete vault is actually going to decrease the 
amount of insurance.  
Ligols: Are they single or double walled tanks? 
David: Triple walled. They were specially ordered and designed.  
McNulty: I have to assume the vault is a better option than just above ground.  
Ligols: The floor is a very important part of the structural feature.  
Judson: The most important part didn’t get inspected.  
Board: We are going to have to wait to see what TEC has to say. 
 

BILLIS WAY: Reduction of bond. 
Planner: The construction of this project has been completed so it is time to fully release this bond.  
Ligols: With the track record, should we wait until the Town Meeting? 
McNulty: But as far as our Board, they are done and nothing else needs to be completed?  
Planner: Correct, there is no legal reason for the Board to hold this bond.  
Ligols: How long did it take them to complete this project? 
Planner: It doesn’t matter, it is done. Legally we have to sign off on this release. 
MOTION: Goodwin motions to release the bond on Billis Way. McNulty seconds. Voted all in favor, the 
motion passes.  
 
MINUTES: Acceptance of February 6, 2024, February 20, 2024, March 19, 2024, and March 25, 2024, 
meeting minutes.  



Page 7 of 7 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

April 2, 2024 

MOTION: Ligols motions to accept the minutes. Goodwin seconds the motion. Voted all in favor, the 
motion passes.  
 

OTHER ITEMS NOT REASONABLE ANTICIPATED AT TIME OF POSTING 
Alice Twombly, 91 Seven Star Rd: I went to go see my engineer about subdividing my irregular lot and 
he said there’s a problem with those in Groveland and he didn’t want me to spend $5,000 without having 
some inclination on whether it would be accepted or not, so how would I proceed for that? 
Goodwin: There is a calculation for that. 
Twombly: I have a U-shaped lot, and it was more so to do with the curb cut, where the wetlands are, etc. 
He suggested I come in with a sketch and ask if it would be something you would entertain.  
Planner: My recommendation for the Board would be to have this on the agenda as a discussion item with 
a sketch, no decisions to be made, for guidance.  
Twombly: Yes, I would like to see what the Board would recommend. We would like to do a common 
drive rather than a true subdivision.  
Board: We can add this on the agenda for April 23rd.  
 
NEXT MEETING: April 23, 2024.   
 

ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION: Ligols motions to adjourn the meeting at 8:31 PM. McNulty seconds the motion. Voted all in 
favor. The motion passed unanimously.  


	240423 Agenda
	6-8 Elm Park Parking Reduc App
	6-8 Elm Park SP Plans
	6-8 Elm Park Parking Reduc Plans
	Don Greaney Corresponse 4-3-2024
	6-8 Elm Park SP - DRAFT
	T0845.15_Field Report 1_20240412
	91 Seven Star Rd Common Driveway rough draft
	833 Salem St - MEMO on Riprap
	21236_Site Condition Report #1
	240109 Minutes
	240402 Minutes

